
Please ask for:
Lisa Young
Direct dial:
(023) 9254 5340
Fax:
(023) 9254 5587
E-mail:
lisa.young@gosport.gov.uk

19 August 2019

S U M M O N S

MEETING: Regulatory Board
DATE: 28 August 2019
TIME:: 6.00 pm
PLACE: Council Chamber
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young

DAVID WILLIAMS
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

The Mayor (Councillor Mrs Jones (ex-Officio) and Councillor Hook (ex-Officio))
Councillor Jessop (Chairman)

Councillor Mrs Hook (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Bateman
Councillor Mrs Batty
Councillor Casey
Councillor Earle
Councillor Farr
Councillor Foster-Reed

Councillor Hammond
Councillor Miss Kelly
Councillor Raffaelli
Councillor Scard
Councillor Westerby

Public Document Pack



FIRE PRECAUTIONS

(To be read by the Mayor if members of the public are present)

In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building.

IMPORTANT NOTICE:

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request.

If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page).

NOTE:

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak. 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting.

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 
consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 



Regulatory Board
28 August 2019

AGENDA

RECOMMENDED 
MINUTE FORMAT

1.  APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

All Members are required to disclose, at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting.

3.  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 23 JULY 2019 (Pages 1 - 
10)

To follow. 

4.  DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

(NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Friday, 23 August 2019.  The total 
time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not 
exceed 10 minutes).

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

(NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from Members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Friday, 
23 August 2019) 

6.  REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGENERATION 
(Pages 11 - 22)

Schedule of planning applications with recommendations.
(grey sheets pages 1-12)

7.  ANY OTHER ITEMS 



This page is intentionally left blank



Regulatory Board
23 July 2019

1

A MEETING OF THE REGULATORY BOARD
WAS HELD ON 23 JULY 2019

Councillors Bateman, Mrs Batty, Casey, Earle, Farr, Foster-Reed, Hammond, Mrs Hook, 
Jessop, Miss Kelly, Raffaelli, Scard and Westerby

17. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

There were none. 

18. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Earle declared a pecuniary interest in agenda item 4 of the grey sheets as he 
owned the neighbouring property. 

Councillor Mrs Hook declared an interest in agenda item 5 of the grey sheets as the legal 
owner of the property.

The Chairman declared that all Conservative members of the Board were known to 
Councillor Mrs Hook with regard to item 5, but would remain in the room and take part in 
the discussion. 

19. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 5 JUNE 2019 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 5 June 2019 be signed as a true and 
correct record. 

20. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

Deputations were received on items 

1 – Priddys Hard, Heritage Way
4 – 47 Linden Grove 
5 – 138-140 High Street. 

21. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

There were none. 

22. FAREHAM LOCAL PLAN 2036 ISSUES AND OPTIONS CONSULTATION 

Consideration was given to a report of the Manager of Planning Policy requesting 
consideration and approval to a response to Fareham Borough Council’s (FBC) Issues and 
Options Consultation as part of its forthcoming Fareham Local Plan 2036.

The Board was advised that there were no updates, but that a response needed to be 
submitted to Fareham Borough Council by 26 July 2019. 

Agenda Item 3



Regulatory Board
23 July 2019

2

Members advised that they felt it was important for all Members to comment online on the 
proposal before the deadline 

Members expressed concern at the language used within the local plan, with references to 
Locks Heath referring to small and limited developments, but references to Newgate Lane 
and Stubbington referred to as “good growth”, indicating greater potential for more 
significant sized development. 

It was encouraging that the Secretary of State had acknowledged the request for a call in 
on the additional proposals for land along Newgate Lane but expressed a request for the 
consultation response  presented to be firmer in its objection to the proposals. 

It was suggested that sentences in the letter that stated ‘could’ be amended to ‘would’ to 
ensure the impact and damage that the proposals would cause to Gosport were completely 
clear. 

Members expressed a wish that the two Councils proceed with  the Statement of Common 
Ground and  that it listed not only the elements of the proposal the authorities agreed with, 
but also those it disagreed with to ensure that the reasons for any non-agreement were 
listed. This would ensure that Fareham Borough Council would then be required to defend 
their position on Gosport Borough Council’s objections. 

The Manager of Planning Policy advised that progress had been made with regard to the 
Statement of Common Ground, and advised that work was being undertaken within the 
wider region to identify sites that may help towards the housing need. 

Members discussed the detail of the amendments to the proposed response and reiterated 
a desire that PUSH would continue to discuss the difficulties regarding housing supply at a 
regional level and noted that the Chairman of PUSH was also the Leader of Fareham 
Borough Council. 

Members advised that they had recently attended Community Action Team meetings held 
by the Fareham Borough Council and had not been permitted to speak to raise their 
objections to the proposal. 

Members expressed sympathy that additional houses were required but felt that it was 
unreasonable that the burden of the supporting infrastructure for the houses would be on 
Gosport. Members were disappointed that Fareham Borough Council had not listened to 
Gosport Borough Council with regard to the IFA2 and expressed concern at the impact 
such properties would have on  Daedalus and its wider economic prosperity. 

The Board confirmed the changes that were proposed and seconded to amend the letter, 
including a strengthening to the level of objection and an additional bullet point with regard 
to the publication of the Statement of Common Ground. 

RESOLVED:  

 That this Council makes the following representations (as expanded upon within sections 
2-4 of this Report) to Fareham Borough Council:



Regulatory Board
23 July 2019

3

 That this Council makes it clear that it strongly opposes significant housing development in 
the current Strategic Gap between Fareham, Gosport, Lee-on-the-Solent and Stubbington 
as it does not represent ‘good growth’ and that it merits continued protection from any future 
development.  The reasons for the objection, set out fully in the report, are summarised as 
follows:

- There is an imperative requirement to safeguard effective strategic transport routes 
through the Strategic Gap to improve accessibility to, and from, the Gosport Peninsula to 
support the local economy.  Further allocations will individually and cumulatively 
exacerbate accessibility constraints for reasons detailed in the report.

- Further allocations will lead to the extensive erosion of the Strategic Gap, which is a long 
established planning principle in the South Hampshire area, as identified by the 
Partnership for South Hampshire’s Spatial Position Statement that aims to prevent 
coalescence of settlements, maintain a sense of place and settlement identity, and 
provide a countryside setting for the sub region and local communities.

 More specifically that this Council maintains its objection in full to the proposed residential 
allocation at Newgate Lane (referred to in the previous Draft Fareham Local Plan (DFLP) 
(2017) as HA2) for the reasons set out below:

- The proposal would physically and visually diminish the long-established Strategic Gap 
between Fareham, Gosport, Lee-on-the-Solent and Stubbington;

- The proposal would  negate the benefits provided by the recent improvements to 
Newgate Lane with a negative impact on traffic flow and increased congestion to the 
detriment of Gosport residents and the local economy including accessibility to the 
Solent Enterprise Zone at Daedalus;

- The proposal would significantly harm the amenities of local Gosport residents with the 
introduction of new access points to existing residential areas, which due to the scale of 
the proposal would lead to a significant increase of traffic on residential roads;

- The proposal, as previously described in the DFLP is very car dependent with no 
provision for public transport.  This would exacerbate the number of trips using Newgate 
Lane

- There is insufficient information on supporting infrastructure required including education, 
medical and community facilities;

 Both Councils should proceed with an agreed strategy for the strategic gap as part of their 
Statement of Common Ground which can be included in the respective Local Plans which 
provides multi-functional benefits to local communities as set out in detail within this report.

 That FBC consider opportunities to increase residential densities at the proposed Welborne 
development to reduce the need to develop in the Strategic Gap.

 And that the Council should proceed with the Statement of Common Ground as soon as is 
practicable, identifying major areas of agreement and non-agreement. 

                                                                                                                                                             

23. REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGENERATION 

The Head of Planning and Regeneration submitted a report on applications received for 
planning permission setting out their recommendations.



Regulatory Board
23 July 2019

4

RESOLVED:  That a decision be taken on each application for planning permission as 
detailed below.

17/00599/FULL - MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT COMPRISING: (I) ERECTION OF 17 
THREE-STOREY TERRACED DWELLINGS IN SOUTHERN DEMI-BASTION, (II) 
DEMOLITION OF FORMER COOK HOUSE AND ERECTION OF 4 THREE-STOREY 
TERRACED DWELLINGS, (III) DEMOLITION OF QUICK FIRE SHELL PAINTING ROOM 
AND ERECTION OF 1 THREE-STOREY DETACHED DWELLING, (IV) ERECTION OF 
THREE DETACHED DWELLINGS IN RAMPARTS, (V) CHANGE OF USE OF FORMER 
SHELL PAINTING ROOM TO FORM 4 DWELLINGS, (V) CHANGE OF USE OF E 
MAGAZINE TO CRAFT BREWERY (CLASS B1), (VI) CHANGE OF USE OF FORMER 
PROOF HOUSE TO STORE (CLASS B8), (VII) CHANGE OF USE OF FORMER SHELL 
STORE (BUILDING Q) TO FORM 1 UNIT OF HOLIDAY ACCOMMODATION (CLASS C3), 
(VIII) CHANGE OF USE OF CASE STORE EXHIBITION AND CONFERENCE CENTRE 
(BUILDING M) TO FORM RESTAURANT/PUB (CLASS A3/A4), (IX) CHANGE OF USE OF 
FORMER SHIFTING HOUSE (BUILDING U) TO FORM 1 UNIT OF HOLIDAY 
ACCOMMODATION (CLASS C3), AND (X) CHANGE OF USE OF FORMER MINES AND 
COUNTERMEASURES STORE (BUILDING P) TO COASTAL FORCES MUSEUM (CLASS 
D1) (LISTED BUILDINGS IN CONSERVATION AREA AND SCHEDULED MONUMENT) 
(as amended by plans received 10.05.18, 02.04.19 and 03.05.19, additional ecological 
information received 21.05.18 and 30.05.18, additional transport information received 
29.05.18, additional flooding information received 01.06.18 and 08.05.19, additional 
supporting information received 12.04.19 & 09.05.19 and as amplified by emails 
received 17.5.18)
Priddys Hard  Heritage Way  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 4LE  

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration requesting 
that consideration be given to application 17/0599/FULL.

The Board was updated on the application.
 
An amended Listed Building application had now been submitted for the changes to the 
scheme that were described in the report.

The proposal is part of a project that Officers have been working on for a number of years. 
Over the last three years Officers have been working with the Portsmouth Naval Base 
Property Trust and their team to deliver the next, and hopefully penultimate, phase of the 
redevelopment of the Heritage area.

This work culminated in the application being considered by the Regulatory Board in June 
2018 where Members resolved to grant planning permission subject to the outstanding 
flooding issue being resolved. Unfortunately it has taken a year to resolve and for the 
Environment Agency to withdraw their objection.

In the intervening period the applicant chose to amend various elements of the proposal, in 
particular to change the future uses of a number of buildings to reflect the needs of 
prospective occupiers. These changes necessitated the application being referred back to 
the Board for reconsideration.



Regulatory Board
23 July 2019

5

During this period the nitrates issue has become a material consideration following recent 
Court decisions.

The Officers recommendation to refuse planning permission was made with great reluctance, 
however, following the negative conclusion of an updated Appropriate Assessment; the 
Habitats Regulations allow no other alternative in the absence of any certainty in relation to 
mitigation.

As set out in the report, IRPOI (Imperative Reasons of Overriding Public Interest) is the only 
mechanism to override a negative Appropriate Assessment.

As a result of the update the Planning Officer’s recommendation remained unchanged. 

Peter Goodship was invited to address the Board. He advised that the journey to the current 
point had been a rollercoaster and that the proposal presented was a better scheme than 
originally proposed but unfortunately at every stage the proposal had been presented with 
obstacles. 

He advised the Board that the scheme was better than before and that there had been a 
desire to attract a restaurant to the site and increase employment opportunities. 

He expressed disappointment at the recommendation for refusal and the issue that had 
arisen, that had not been a consideration when the previous application was considered and 
was unwelcome and untimely. 

He advised the Board that the project had been expensive and complicated and that the 
works to repair the buildings are substantial. The Board was advised that Heritage Lottery 
and other sources of funding were in place but were at risk if there was any delay in 
approval. This in turn would place delivery of the whole project at risk. 

He advised that the project included proposals for houses that provided solutions to issues 
identified and that it was sensitive in its approach to design and landscape and that phase 
two of the project would not be possible without phase one being undertaken. 

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that the previous proposal  
included a distillery, but that the revised proposals included plans for a brewery. The 
additional space would therefore be used for an interpretation centre to compliment the 
ecological and historical parts of the site. In addition the previously proposed distillery store 
would provide accommodation for the boat building academy, and would provide starter units 
to allow students to live, work and develop skills.

The Board was advised that proposals had been investigated with regard to surface water 
and water run off to address the objection from the Natural England. In addition, to address 
the nitrates issue, the Board was advised that proposals had been made to convert 
hardstanding to soft landscaping. 

He advised that there were plans for the Ramparts that would allow for the enhancement of 
the existing reed beds to collect the by-products of waste water meaning that less nitrates 
would flow into the lake. He advised that it was not easy to address the issues that had 
arisen but that efforts were being made to do so. 



Regulatory Board
23 July 2019

6

Members recognised the challenge presented and recognised that the application was 
particularly important as it formed part of the HAZ Programme. Members recognised the 
importance to support such schemes and their importance to the Borough. 

Mr Goodship advised the Board that he did not believe it was appropriate to proceed with the 
project under  IROPI as he did not feel that the project would meet the strict exemption tests 
and felt that this was only appropriate for major infrastructure projects such as airports and 
railway stations. 
 
Members were advised that mitigation was required for the residential element of the 
proposal only  and that the previously considered proposals could not be implemented as 
planning permission had not been issued given the outstanding flood issue and objection 
from the EA.  

Members expressed disappointment that the application was recommended for refusal but 
understood the officers’ position Members were advised that it was not possible to consider 
the application on a piecemeal basis and determine the commercial element of the proposal 
only.

Members were advised that on the basis of the specific criteria set out in the legislation, 
making an exception under the IROPI route could potentially leave any favourable decision 
made by the Council as Local Planning Authority vulnerable to legal challenge. 

Members questioned whether it would be possible to place conditions on the application that 
restricted the occupation of the residential units until appropriate mitigation measures had 
been put in place. Members were advised that the Board could make such a resolution but 
this too could be vulnerable to legal challenge and ultimately lead to the quashing of the 
decision. Officers advised that judgements made on recent court cases had concluded that a 
Local Planning Authority must be satisfied that the proposed mitigation measures are i) 
adequate and ii) appropriate secured before planning permission can be granted 

Members reiterated that the development and regeneration of this site was important for the 
future of the Borough and noted that discussions were ongoing with regard to developing a 
mitigation protocol and also that there would be no harm from additional nitrates being 
generated until such time as the residential units were occupied.  Under the circumstances 
Members felt that the addition of a condition   preventing occupancy of any of the residential 
units until such time as appropriate mitigation had been secured would be a reasonable way 
forward and allow a positive resolution to be made on this occasion   

Members expressed disappointment that the nitrate issue wasn’t being addressed by 
Southern Water and noted that the main contributor to nitrate run off was agricultural land, 
which was not present in Gosport. 

Members acknowledged the risk of subsequent challenge but felt that the use of a condition 
was a reasonable way of ensuring there would be no harm from the development 
It was proposed and seconded that the application be approved subject to the completion of 
a section 106 agreement and that delegated authority be given to the Development Manager, 



Regulatory Board
23 July 2019

7

in consultation with the Senior Solicitor and Monitoring Officer, to attach an appropriate 
condition to ensure no habitation of the residential element of the proposal until the nitrates 
issue had been resolved. 

RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to the completion of a section 106 
agreement and that authority being delegated to the Development Manager and Senior 
Solicitor and Monitoring Officer to attach planning conditions as appropriate, in particular a 
condition that to ensure no habitation of the residential element of the proposal until the 
nitrates issue is resolved. 

19/00129/FULL - CHANGE OF USE FROM DWELLING (CLASS C3) TO A 7 BED (10 
PERSON) HOUSE IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION (SUI GENERIS) 
4 Avenue Road  

This item was withdrawn by the applicant prior to the meeting.  

19/00189/FULL ERECTION OF SINGLE STOREY DETACHED DWELLINGHOUSE 
(AMENDED SCHEME TO 18/00410/FULL)
18 Clyde Road Gosport Hampshire PO12 3DN    

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration requesting 
that consideration be given to application 19/00189/FULL.

RESOLVED: That planning application 19/00189/FULL be refused for the reasons stated in 
the report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration. 

19/00231/FULL - ERECTION OF SINGLE STOREY SIDE / REAR EXTENSION
47 Linden Grove Gosport Hampshire PO12 2ED    

Councillor Earle left the room and took no part in the discussion or voting thereon. 

Mr Rowe was invited to address the Board. He advised that he resided at the neighbouring 
property and was concerned at the proposed scale of the extension. He advised that there 
was no extension in the original footprint of his house and that he had invited Mr Jackson to 
discuss the application with him, but that he had declined. 

He advised that the proposed height did not preserve his quality of living and the plan didn’t 
give an indication as to how overbearing the proposal would be to his lounge in the late 
afternoon. He requested that Members undertake a site visit to view how the proposal would 
impact on his property. 

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that the balcony to his property 
was an addition to it. 

Mr Jackson was invited to address the Board. He provided the Board with photos of his 
proposal and talked through the proposal. 



Regulatory Board
23 July 2019

8

He advised that he did not feel that the proposal was excessive or out of the ordinary and 
that the fact that it fell below permitted development rights supported this. 

He advised that the proposal was smaller than he had originally wished for but that the 
proposal had been reduced to consider and minimise impact on his neighbours. 

Mr Jackson advised that the proposal would not impact on number 45 Linden Grove in terms 
of its height, or causing a loss of light to the window in the western elevation and confirmed 
that the proposal was similar to a previously approved plan for the proposed extension and 
that number 45 had added an extension to their property locating the windows closer to the 
boundary. 

Mr Jackson advised that the previously approved plans included a parapet wall and that a flat 
roof was not out of character and advised that number 45 had recently undertaken 
modernisation to their balcony which could be seen as being out of character. 

Mr Jackson advised the Board that the proposal would not affect the rear light to number 49 
as the proposed extension was located 4.6 metres away and number 49 had recently raised 
their terrace patio which would add exposure to the sun. 

Mr Jackson concluded by advising that the drawings gave a misleading false impression of 
excessive height due to the difference in ground level and advised that the permitted 
development for his property was a far greater size than his proposal. 

In answer to a Member’s question, Mr Jackson had advised that he had not met with his 
neighbours as he did not wish to amend the design. He also advised that he would consider 
a larger development under permitted development if the application was refused. 

In answer to a further question, the Board was advised that the chosen roof design was less 
expensive and that the proposed design was such as that was his preferred design. 

Planning Officers clarified the permitted development rules for the site, and advised that if an 
objection was made to an application for a larger home extension, the local planning 
authority could determine the amenity impacts of the proposal. 

It was proposed and seconded that the application be deferred for a site visit. This was not 
agreed. 

RESOLVED: That application 19/0231/FULL be approved subject to the conditions of the 
report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration. 

19/00172/FULL - ERECTION OF SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION TO SHOP, 
INCLUDING SEPARATE STORAGE USE (CLASS B8) (CONSERVATION AREA)
138-140 High Street Gosport Hampshire PO12 1EA    

Councillor Mrs Hook left the room and took no further part in the discussion or voting 
thereon. 

Mr Knappett was invited to address the Board. He advised that the proposal was to erect a 
rear extension and that the retailer Savers was due to move in and would create employment 
for the town.



Regulatory Board
23 July 2019

9

The Board was advised that the proposal was for less floor space than had stood with the 
previous extension and that the extension would provide  storage and office space. 

Members welcomed the employment the proposal would bring. 

RESOLVED: That planning application 19/00172/FULL be approved, subject to the 
conditions in the report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration

24. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

Members were advised that the appeal for the proposed development of Starbucks at 
Gosport Leisure Park had been allowed. 

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 19:30



This page is intentionally left blank



Regulatory Board Agenda:  28th August 2019

DC-AGENDA-SEM-19.08.19 Page 1 of 11 DC/UNI-form Template

GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL – REGULATORY BOARD 

28th August 2019

ITEMS WITH RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Copies of drawings and accompanying planning applications referred to in this schedule will 
be made available for inspection by Members from 5.00 pm immediately prior to the 
meeting.  Unless otherwise advised, these plans will be displayed in the room in which the 
Regulatory Board is to be held.

2. The number of objections and representations indicated in the schedule are correct at the 
time the recommendations were formulated.  Should any representations be made after this 
date, these will be notified to the Regulatory Board during the officer presentation.

3. Copies of all representations received from the public will be made available for inspection 
by Members in the same way as drawings will be made available, referred to in Note 1 
above.

4. An index of planning applications within this schedule can be found overleaf, together with 
a summary of each recommendation.

Agenda Item 6



Regulatory Board:  28th August 2019

DC-AGENDA-SEM-19.08.19 Page 2 of 11 DC/UNI-form Template

INDEX

Item Page 
No

Appl. No. Address Recommendation

01. 03-08 19/00258/FULL Land Adjacent To 19 Burney 
Road  Gosport  Hampshire  
PO12 2QB    

Refuse

02. 09-
11/1

19/00159/FULL 10 Elgar Close  Gosport  
Hampshire  PO12 2LU    

Grant Permission
subject to Conditions



Regulatory Board:  28th August 2019

DC-AGENDA-SEM-19.08.19 Page 3 of 11 DC/UNI-form Template

ITEM NUMBER: 01.
APPLICATION NUMBER: 19/00258/FULL
APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Blackham  
DATE REGISTERED: 21.06.2019

ERECTION OF DETACHED THREE BEDROOM DWELLING IN REAR GARDEN (as 
amended by plan received 22.7.19 and as amplified by email received 22.7.19)
Land Adjacent To 19 Burney Road  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 2QB    

The Site and the proposal

1. The application site is a 'L-shaped' parcel of land currently forming the side and rear garden of 
number 19 Burney Road. The existing dwelling is a two-storey detached property located on the 
eastern side of the road. The main part of the application site measures approximately 22 metres 
deep and 20 metres wide and currently forms the rear part of the garden of the existing dwelling. 
This part of the site is heavily vegetated and contains a small pond. The site also includes an area 
of land 30 metres deep by 4 metres wide that is sited along the southern flank of the existing 
dwelling.

2. The site is flanked to the north by the rear gardens of properties in Burney and Bay Roads. To 
the east are the rear gardens of other properties in Bay Road. To the south are the rear gardens of 
properties in Burney and Vectis Roads. Burney, Bay and Vectis Roads form a rectangle with 
properties fronting the road and whose back gardens form a wider parcel of green infrastructure. 
The existing dwellings are predominately two-storey in scale and semi-detached in form. There are 
examples of two-storey detached properties in the locality, mainly on corner plots. The site is within 
50 metres of a recorded Pipistrelle bat roost.

3. The proposal is to subdivide the existing curtilage of number 19 Burney Road and to erect a two-
storey, three bedroom dwelling to the rear with vehicular access to the south of the existing 
dwelling. The proposed dwelling would have a footprint measuring approximately 12.5 metres wide 
by 6.5 metres deep and would be sited approximately 30m to the rear of the existing dwelling. The 
proposed dwelling would have a front garden with a depth of 8.5 metres and a rear garden of 
between 4 and 7 metres deep and would be sited 2 metres from the northern boundary of the site 
and 3.5 metres from the southern boundary. The proposed dwelling would have a pitched roof 
rising from an eaves height of 2.5 metres to a ridge height of 8 metres with the flank elevations 
having projecting inverted hips. The first floor accommodation would be provided within the roof 
with the fenestration of the upper floor accommodation primarily being via windows in the gables 
augmented by rooflights.

4. The submitted plans indicate off-street parking being provided for two cars, together with a 
turning area that would be accessed by a drive running between numbers 19 and 21 Burney Road 
and also parking for two vehicles being retained for the existing dwelling. An existing single storey 
projection on the southern side of the existing dwelling would be demolished to provide the 
proposed means of access.

Relevant Planning History

Nil.

Relevant Policies

Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029:
LP10  Design
LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking
LP24  Housing
LP41  Green Infrastructure
LP42  International and Nationally Important Habitats
LP44  Protecting Species and Other Features of Nature Conservation Importance



Regulatory Board:  28th August 2019

DC-AGENDA-SEM-19.08.19 Page 4 of 11 DC/UNI-form Template

Supplementary Planning Documents:
Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 
2014
Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014
Solent Special Protection Areas Gosport Bird Disturbance Mitigation Protocol April 2018

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), July 2018

Consultations
 
 Streetscene Waste & Cleansing No objection.
 
 Streetscene Parks & Horticulture No objection. None of the trees on site 

considered suitable candidates for 
protection.

 
 Building Control No response received.
 
 Hampshire Fire And Rescue Service No objection.
 
 HCC Ecology Object. Submitted ecological information 

inadequate.
 
 Local Highway Authority No objection. Refer to standing advice.
 
 Natural England Further information required in respect of 

nitrate discharge from waste water. 
Increased residential development has 
potential to have an adverse impact of 
integrity of nearby protected sites 
(Portsmouth Harbour, Chichester and 
Langstone Harbour and Solent and 
Southampton Water Special Protection 
Areas).

Response to Public Advertisement

11 letters of objection.
Issues raised:
- backland development out of character with area;
- design of dwelling out of character with locality;
- inadequate garden for future occupiers;
- loss of privacy;
- loss of light;
- increased overshadowing;
- increased noise, disturbance and pollution of vehicles;
- light pollution;
- loss of habitat and trees;
- impact on protected species;
- exacerbating of existing parking problems in area;
- increased security risk by creating access to rears of neighbouring properties;
- no justification for development;
- impact of building works;
- inadequate and inaccurate information in application;
- potential for setting a damaging precedent.



Regulatory Board:  28th August 2019

DC-AGENDA-SEM-19.08.19 Page 5 of 11 DC/UNI-form Template

Principal Issues

1. The information accompanying the application has been submitted with the intention of 
supporting the application and the submitted plans and particulars are of adequate detail and, in 
conjunction with the Officers site visit, are sufficient to enable this application to be considered and 
determined. The Local Planning Authority has an obligation to consider each and every planning 
application on its merits in light of the relevant national and local planning policies. A certain level 
of disturbance is inevitable during the construction period. If this becomes a statutory nuisance, the 
matter would be dealt with through the Environmental Health legislation. 

2. The site is located within the Urban Area Boundary where the principle of residential 
development is acceptable, subject to compliance with other planning policies and guidance.  The 
main issues in this case are therefore the acceptability of the proposal in terms of its impact on the 
character and visual amenity of the locality, the residential amenities of adjoining and prospective 
occupiers, the car parking and cycle storage arrangements and impacts on protected species and 
habitats.

3. The character and appearance of the area is predominantly of two-storey residential properties 
facing onto the street. The proposed tandem or 'backland' siting of the proposed dwelling would be 
at odds with the character and urban grain of the area. The character of the area is of two-storey 
dwellings of a traditional design which is not reflected in the proposed dwelling. Its two-storey scale 
and large roof with inverted hips would be at complete odds with the established character of built 
development in the locality. As a result the proposal would appear as incongruous, discordant and 
unduly prominent feature, out of keeping with the established pattern of development of the locality 
detrimental to the character of the area and contrary to Policy LP10 of the Local Plan and the 
Design SPD.

4. The scale and siting of the proposed dwelling are such that it would appear as an overbearing 
and unneighbourly feature and would result in a significant degree of overshadowing and loss of 
light to neighbouring gardens. The proposed layout and pattern of fenestration of the dwelling is 
such that it would result in direct overlooking of a number of neighbouring gardens. The presence 
of first floor habitable room windows in close proximity to boundaries would result in an 
unacceptable perception of neighbouring gardens being overlooked. Furthermore the proposed 
driveway would run in close proximity to numbers 19 and 21 Burney Road with the attendant 
disturbance and pollution from vehicles using it. The proposal would therefore cause significant 
harm to the residential amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring properties.

5. The proposed dwelling would be provided with a very modest rear garden of a size that would 
fall short of the recommended depth set out in the Design SPD and is not considered to provide an 
acceptable level of amenity. Whilst a larger front garden would be provided, its use would be 
limited by the provision of facilities for the parking of cars and the storage of cycles and bins. 
Overall the proposal is considered unacceptable in amenity terms and contrary to Policy LP10 of 
the Local Plan and the Design SPD.

6. Off road vehicular parking is indicated for both the existing and proposed dwelling in a manner 
that would largely comply with the Parking SPD. The site is considered capable of accommodating 
off street parking that would fully meet the requirements of the Parking SPD and an access that 
would comply with Standing Advice provided by the Local Highway Authority. If the development 
were considered acceptable the provision of these could be secured through the imposition of 
suitably worded planning conditions. Subject to such conditions the proposal would comply with 
Policy LP23 of the Local Plan.

7. The site would be capable of providing adequate facilities for the storage of cycles which could, 
if the scheme was otherwise acceptable, be secured by the imposition of a suitably worded 
planning condition. Similarly the site would be capable of providing adequate facilities for the 
storage and collection of refuse and recyclable materials and if the scheme was otherwise 
acceptable, could be secured by the imposition of a suitably worded planning condition.



Regulatory Board:  28th August 2019

DC-AGENDA-SEM-19.08.19 Page 6 of 11 DC/UNI-form Template

8. The site comprises a mix of mature trees, shrubs and hedging and is surrounded by gardens of 
a similar nature. These habitats could support populations of legally-protected species including 
bats, nesting birds, reptile species and badgers. The application is not supported by sufficient 
ecological information to demonstrate that the proposed works would not be likely to impact on 
habitats or protected species. In the absence of sufficient and up-to-date ecological information, 
the proposals are contrary to Policy LP44 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and 
cannot be permitted.

9. The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 [as amended] and the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 place duties on the Council to ensure that the proposed development would 
not have a significant effect on the interest features for which Portsmouth Harbour, the Solent and 
Southampton Water are designated as Special Protection Areas, or otherwise affect protected 
habitats or species. Policy LP42 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 sets out how the 
Council will ensure that the European designated nature conservation sites along the Solent coast 
will continue to be protected.

10.  The proposal will introduce an additional dwelling which is likely to result in increased 
recreational activity on the coast and a consequential impact on the protected species for which 
the Portsmouth Harbour SPA, the Solent and Southampton Water SPA and the Chichester and 
Langstone Harbours SPA are designated. The Gosport Bird Disturbance Mitigation Protocol sets 
out how the significant effect which this scheme would otherwise cause, could be overcome. The 
applicant has not acknowledged the need to provide SPA mitigation in this way and no mechanism 
has been proposed to secure appropriate mitigation in accordance with the Protocol. Without 
mitigation the proposal is unacceptable and would have an unacceptable impact on protected 
species contrary to Policy LP42. 

11. Natural England have raised concerns that new dwellings are causing increased levels of 
nitrogen and phosphorus input to the water environment in the Solent with evidence that these 
nutrients are causing eutrophication at European and internationally designated habitat sites and 
additional mitigation measures will be required to offset any increases in nitrogen discharges that 
would result from the proposals. Natural England advise that proposals for new residential 
development should achieve nitrogen neutrality to avoid harm to these sites. In the absence of 
supporting information from the applicant in an ecological appraisal to demonstrate the 
development would be nitrogen neutral or would provide suitable mitigation, the development is 
unacceptable and would cause harm to European and internationally designated protected sites. 
The proposal would be contrary to Policy LP42 of the Local Plan.

Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications

RECOMMENDATION:  Refuse

For the following reason(s):-

1. The proposal would, by reason of its inappropriate siting within the rear garden of number 19 
Burney Road, be at odds with the established pattern of residential development in the locality. 
Furthermore the excessive scale and design of the proposal would create an incongruous, 
cramped and discordant development, detrimental to the established character of the area and 
contrary to the principles of good design as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework, 
Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and to the Design SPD.

2. The proposal would, by reason of its inappropriate siting, scale and layout, result in an 
unacceptable degree of overlooking, loss of light, increased sense of enclosure and disturbance 
harmful to the residential amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring properties and contrary to 
the Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and to the Design SPD.

3. The application does not demonstrate that the proposals would not be likely to affect the habitats 
of protected species and is therefore contrary to Policy LP44 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 
2011-2029.



Regulatory Board:  28th August 2019

DC-AGENDA-SEM-19.08.19 Page 7 of 11 DC/UNI-form Template

4. The proposal does not make adequate provision to mitigate against the harmful impacts of 
recreational disturbance on the Portsmouth Harbour SPA, the Solent and Southampton Water 
SPA and the Chichester and Langstone Harbours SPA sites to the detriment of the protected 
and other species for which these areas are designated, contrary to Policy LP42 of the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, the Solent Special Protection Areas Gosport Bird Disturbance 
Mitigation Protocol 2016 and the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations (as 
amended).

5. The proposal fails to demonstrate the development would be nitrogen neutral and/or would 
provide mitigation to off-set any increased nutrient discharge associated with the proposal and 
would therefore cause unacceptable harm to European and Internationally designated habitat 
sites which would be detrimental to the protected and other species for which these areas are 
designated. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies LP42 and LP44 of the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and The 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017.





Regulatory Board:  28th August 2019

DC-AGENDA-SEM-19.08.19 Page 9 of 11 DC/UNI-form Template

ITEM NUMBER: 02.
APPLICATION NUMBER: 19/00159/FULL
APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs P Halsey  
DATE REGISTERED: 11.04.2019

ERECTION OF FRONT/SIDE EXTENSION AND DORMER WINDOW (CONSERVATION 
AREA) (as amended by plans received 04.07.19)
10 Elgar Close  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 2LU    

The Site and the proposal

1. The application site is located on the southern side of Elgar Close. The property is a detached 
dwelling, constructed of brick, with a projection on part of the front elevation incorporating a pitched 
tiled roof with a cat slide section, and a dormer window over an integral garage. Adjacent to the cat 
slide projection is a two-storey section with small pitch to the main ridge of the house and high level 
windows to an en-suite. The dwelling has two floors of accommodation on the front elevation and 
three levels to the rear, overlooking the rear garden.  There is parking to the front of the property.  
The site is within the Anglesey Conservation Area.

2. Number 9 to the east is a similar style property but has a cat slide roof across its entire front 
elevation and two dormer windows to the road frontage. Number 11 to the west is a two-storey 
property that has a secondary kitchen window on the ground floor east elevation facing the 
application site.  The remainder of the area is a mix of residential properties.

3. The proposals are for the erection of a front extension. It was previously proposed to erect a two-
storey flat roof extension on the western boundary adjacent to number 11.  The extension was 
proposed to infill the recess adjacent to the cat slide roof extending 5m beyond this elevation and 
0.9m beyond the existing garage. Amended plans have been received which have altered the 
proposed extension to provide a cat slide roof and dormer window to replicate that on the existing 
property.  The extension would project to the same depth as the existing garage and cat slide roof 
and have a tiled roof to match.  The proposed dormer would have the same dimensions and 
appearance as existing. Materials would be to match.

Relevant Planning History

13/00056/FULL - partial infill and extension of rear first floor balcony and roof alterations to include 
extension of existing rear dormers and erection of balcony on second floor (Conservation Area) - 
permitted 11.04.13

Relevant Policies

Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029:
LP1  Sustainable Development
LP10  Design
LP12  Designated Heritage Assets: Conservation Areas

Supplementary Planning Documents:
Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 
2014
Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), July 2018

Particular obligations fall upon the Local Planning Authority in determining any application which 
might affect a Conservation Area.  Section 72 of The Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act 
1990 (as amended) requires that the authority pay: "special attention to the desirability of preserving 
or enhancing the character or appearance of a conservation area".



Regulatory Board:  28th August 2019

DC-AGENDA-SEM-19.08.19 Page 10 of 11 DC/UNI-form Template

Consultations
 
 The Gosport Society No response received.
 
 Environmental Health No objection.  No contamination conditions 

required in this instance.
 
 HCC Landscape Planning & Heritage No objection. Having reviewed our records I 

can confirm that I do not wish to raise any 
archaeological issues in this instance.

Response to Public Advertisement

1 letter of objection
Issues raised:
- loss of light to kitchen
- loss of outlook
- existing properties designed not to impact on neighbours
- the ratios of bedrooms to other rooms within the house would suggest that there is scope to 
accommodate the proposed lounge and bedroom within the existing footprint of the house

Principal Issues

1. The size of the dwelling and number of bedrooms, compared to other rooms is a matter for the 
individual property owner, provided adequate parking can be provided. The existing property has 
four bedrooms and the provision of an additional bedroom within the extension would not require 
additional car parking provision, in accordance with the Parking SPD.  The main issues in this 
instance are, therefore, whether the proposals would have a detrimental impact on the appearance 
of the dwelling, would preserve, or enhance the character and appearance of the Conservation 
Area, or have a detrimental impact on the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring properties.

2. There are a variety of dwelling designs within Elgar Close. In this instance the design seeks to 
retain the cat slide roof and erect an extension to match, essentially squaring off the front elevation 
of the property.  The resultant front elevation would have a balanced appearance with two matching 
dormer windows and identical roof pitch. The proposed design replicates that of its neighbour to the 
east (number 9) and would preserve the character and appearance of the Anglesey Conservation 
Area.  The proposals would not have a detrimental impact on the visual amenity of the area, in 
accordance with Policies LP10 and LP12 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and the 
Design SPD.

3. The proposals would increase the depth of the building adjacent to the western boundary and 
number 11 Elgar Close. Whilst there are windows on the eastern elevation of number 11 facing onto 
the application property and the existing recess, these are secondary windows serving the lounge 
and kitchen.  Given the orientation of the properties and the fact that the main affected window 
would be a secondary kitchen window, which is not a habitable room, there would inevitably be an 
impact on the light and outlook afforded this room if the extension were constructed, however, this 
is not considered to be significantly harmful to the amenities of the occupiers.  Given the position of 
the extension and the proposed windows the proposals would not have any impact in terms of loss 
of privacy on the neighbouring occupiers.  The proposals are, therefore, in accordance with Policy 
LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 in this respect.

Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications

RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission



Regulatory Board:  28th August 2019

DC-AGENDA-SEM-19.08.19 Page 11 of 11 DC/UNI-form Template

Subject to the following condition(s):-

1. The development hereby permitted must be begun within a period of three years beginning with 
the date on which this permission is granted.
Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 (as amended).

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 
plans:
Site Location Plan; Block/Site Plan; Halsey 215.8
Reason - To ensure that the development is completed satisfactorily in all respects and to 
comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.

3. The materials to be used shall match in type, colour and texture, those on the existing dwelling 
unless otherwise agreed, in writing, with the Local Planning Authority.
Reason - To ensure satisfactory visual relationship of the new development to the existing, and 
to comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 23 July 2019
	6 Report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration

